
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
November 5, 2009, Regular Meeting 


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 


(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the October 1, 2009 Board Meeting  
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments/Construction 


Warrants, and West America account activity 
 


C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 
regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 







attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting. 


 
 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 


the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Discussion/Action re Resolution 09-25, Authorizing the General Manager to 


Accept Capital Improvement Project, Phase IV-A, Project 2 (Water Main 
Replacement in the Monte Rio Terraces), and to Sign and Record a Notice of 
Completion (Est. time 10 min.) 


 
B. Discussion/Action re Status report on application for FY 2009-10 and FY 2010-11 


funding from the Russian River Redevelopment Oversight Committee/Sonoma 
County Redevelopment Agency for CIP IV-B (Est. time 10 min.) 


 
C. Discussion/Action re Introduction by Reading of Title of Ordinance 41, Adding 


Policy Number 3510 to the District’s Policies & Procedures, Reserve Policy (Est. 
time 30 min.) 


 
D. Discussion/Action re Resolution 09-26, Adopting the California Standardized 


Emergency Management System (SEMS), Master Mutual Aid Agreement, and 
Operational Area Agreements; and Resolution 09-27, Adopting the National 
Incident Management System (NIMS) (Est. time 15 min.) 


 
E. Discussion re Actual vs. Budgeted expenditures (1st Quarter, FY 2009-10, 


Operations and Capital)(Est. time 15 min.) 
 
F. Discussion/Action re Recommendations regarding District Policies (Est. time 20 


min.) 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (Est. time: 15 min.) 
 
 
VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(Est. time: 5 min.) 
 
 
VIII. CLOSED SESSION (Est. time: 40 min.) 


 
A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) of 


Section 54956.9.   
  Name of case: Cross-Complaint of F. Korbel & Bros. v. John Bruce Berry, et al. 
 
 B. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.7 
  Property: 14139 Sunset Avenue, Guerneville 
  Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Negotiating parties: SSWD and SBA Wireless Towers 
 


 2







 3


 
IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 


ADJOURN 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
Regular Meeting  
October 1, 2009 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Victoria Wikle 
 Wanda Smith 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Jim Quigley 
 Gaylord Schaap 
   
Board Members Absent:  
 
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie A. Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     Mike Gogna, District counsel 
      Lloyd Guccione 
      Dan Fein 


 
I. CALL TO ORDER 


 
The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Victoria Wikle at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 


p.m.) 
 
Director Wikle requested that Closed Session be held no later than 9 p.m.  There were no 
objections.  
 
Director Schaap requested an update on Monte Rio Well 5 be added to the General Manager’s 
Report.  There were no objections. 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:33 p.m.) 
 
Director Smith moved to approve the Consent Calendar.  Director Robb-Wilder seconded.  
Motion carried 5-0, except that Director Quigley and Director Schaap abstained from voting on 
the Minutes because they were absent for that meeting.  The following items were approved: 
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the September 3, 2009 Board Meeting 
 


 1







B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments/Construction 
Warrants, and West America account activity 


 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence:  (There was no correspondence.) 
 
D. Adopt Resolution 09-24, Approving a First Amendment to Employment 


Agreement with Stephen F. Mack and Authorizing the Board President to 
Execute Said First Amendment 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:36 p.m.) 
 
Public comment was made by Lloyd Guccione. 
Public comment was made by Dan Fein. 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:37 p.m.) 


A. (6:36 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Status report on application for FY 2009-10 and FY 
2010-11 funding from the Russian River Redevelopment Oversight 
Committee/Sonoma County Redevelopment Agency for CIP IV-B.  The GM provided 
an overview of this item.  Public comment was made by Lloyd Guccione.  Brief 
discussion ensued.  


B. (6:41 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Approval of Resolution 09-23, Approving the 
Second Amendment to Services Agreement Between Sweetwater Springs Water 
District and Dale Dross.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Brief discussion 
ensued.  Public comment was made by Lloyd Guccione.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to 
approve Resolution 09-23, Approving the Second Amendment to Services Agreement 
Between Sweetwater Water District and Dale Dross and Authorizing the General 
Manager to Execute the Agreement.  Director Quigley seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.  


C. (6:48 p.m.) Discussion/Action re District reserve policy.  The GM provided an 
overview of this item.  Board questions ensued.  Public comment was made by Lloyd 
Guccione.  Board discussion ensued.  The GM provided further comment and Board 
discussion continued.  Direction was given to staff to develop a policy, using operating 
expenses rather than revenues as a basis for operating reserve and 25% as a 
percentage for debt payment reserve.   


D. (7:30 p.m.) Discussion re Russian River water shortage.  The GM made a 
PowerPoint presentation and answered Board questions throughout.  Board discussion 
ensued.  Public comment was made by Lloyd Guccione.  


E. (7:54 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Potential disposition of District property.  The GM 
provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  Public comment was made 
by Dan Fein.  Public comment was made by Lloyd Guccione.  Director Quigley and 
Director Smith volunteered to be on an ad hoc committee regarding disposition of District 
property with the purpose of working with the General Manager to revise the District’s 
current policy for disposing of real estate.   


*** At 8:28 p.m. a break was announced.  The meeting reconvened at 8:35 p.m. *** 


F. (8:35 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Communication towers and potential fire.  Director 
Smith provided a brief overview of this item.  The GM provided further overview.  
Discussion ensued.  No action was taken.  


G. (8:38 p.m.) Discussion re Card or letter from the District to Chuck Howell’s family.  
The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  It was agreed that 


 2







the meeting would be adjourned in memory of Chuck Howell and a letter sent to the 
family. 


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:41 p.m.) 
 
The GM provided an overview and answered Board questions on the following subjects: 
 
1. Laboratory testing 
2. Water production and sales 
3. Leaks 
4. Capital improvement projects/road paving 
5. Rainfall 
6. Wastewater Task Group 
7. Monte Rio Well 5 Rehab 
 
Public comment was made by Lloyd Guccione. 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS  
(8:58 p.m.) 


 
Director Robb-Wilder commented on the CSDA webinars. 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (9:04 p.m.) 
 
At 9:04 p.m. the Board went into Closed Session.  At 9:45 p.m. the meeting reconvened.  
President Wikle announced the items discussed during Closed Session and the action taken: 
 


A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) 
of Section 54956.9 


 Name of case: Cross-Complaint of F. Korbel & Bros. v. John Bruce Berry, 
et al.  


  Direction was given to legal counsel. 
 
 D. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.7. 
  Property: 14139 Sunset Avenue, Guerneville 
  Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Negotiating parties: SSWD and SBA Wireless Towers 
  Direction was given to staff. 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (9:47 p.m.) 
 
1. Closed session items 
2. RRROC/Sonoma County Redevelopment application 
3. District Reserve policy 
4. Review recommendations regarding Policies & Procedures  
5. 1st quarter Actual vs. Budgeted expenditures 
 
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned in memory of Chuck Howell at 10:17 p.m. 
 


 3







 4


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
APPROVED:  
 
Wanda Smith:  ______________ _ ______  
Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  
Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Jim Quigley:  ______________ _ ______  





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:33 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:36 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:37 p.m.)

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:41 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 

		(8:58 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (9:04 p.m.)

		A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) of Section 54956.9

		 Name of case: Cross-Complaint of F. Korbel & Bros. v. John Bruce Berry, et al. 





		IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (9:47 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: November 5, 2009 
  
SUBJECT: NOTICE OF COMPLETION FOR CIP IV-A, PROJECT 2 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Resolution 09-25 which authorizes the General 
Manager to accept Capital Improvement Project (CIP), Phase IV-A, Project 2 as 
substantially complete, and to sign and record a Notice of Completion. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
CIP IV-A, Project 2, which is main replacement and improvements in the Monte Rio 
Terraces is substantially complete.  The Project Engineers, Brelje and Race, have 
communicated that there are only a few small items left to be completed.  As such is it 
appropriate for the Board to approve Resolution 09-25 which authorizes the General 
Manager to accept the Project as substantially complete, and to sign and record a 
Notice of Completion.   
 
Sweetwater Springs Water District entered into a contract with KAT Construction  
(KAT) for construction of CIP IV-A, Project 2 on April 28, 2009 for a contract price of 
$836,564.00 with a projected completion date in November.  During construction 
there were 2 approved change orders in the amount of $10,326.45.  The projected 
final total construction cost is $846,890.45.  The estimated cost for CIP IV-A Project 
2 in the Sonoma County Redevelopment Agency (RDA) and Russian River 
Redevelopment Oversight Committee (RRROC) grant funding request in 2007 was 
$1,150,000 and 50 percent of that is $575,000 (the RRROC grant is for CIP IV-A in 
total which includes Project 1 and is a total grant award of $983,500).  Project 2 also 
had design and construction management costs, estimated at $235,000, which are 
not included in the above tabulation. 
 
The work done by KAT has been good and District customers in the affected areas are 
seeing better water quality, more reliable service, better fire protection, more consistent 
water flow, and paved roads where trenching was done.  The completed project will also 
reduce system water losses as these areas were constant sources of distribution system 
breaks, and the affected customers will have fewer service interruptions due to repair of 
the leaks.    The neighborhoods served by this project have received real, long lasting 
improvements.  RDA and RRROC should be very satisfied with the completed result 
meeting the goals of redevelopment.   







 
Resolution No. 09-25 


 
A RESOLUTION OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO 
ACCEPT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, PHASE IV-A, PROJECT 


2,  AND TO SIGN AND RECORD A NOTICE OF COMPLETION 


 WHEREAS, Sweetwater Springs Water District (“District”), entered into a 
construction contract with KAT Construction (“Contractor”) on April 28, 2009 for the 
construction of the District’s Capital Improvement Project (CIP), Phase IV-A, Project 2 
(“Project”), which were water main replacement and improvements in the Monte Rio 
Terraces; and 


 WHEREAS, the Project has been overseen by Brelje & Race, the District’s 
Engineer; and 


 WHEREAS, Brelje & Race submitted a letter to the District on October 28, 2009, 
indicating that the Project is substantially complete; and 


 WHEREAS, Brelje & Race acknowledges that the Contractor must still complete 
a short “punch list” of minor work, but said punch list does not have any major items of 
improvement; and  


 WHEREAS, Brelje & Race has recommended that the District record a Notice of 
Completion for the project. 


  


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 


 1. The General Manager is hereby authorized to accept the improvements 
constructed as part of the Project.  


2. The General Manager is authorized to sign and record a Notice of 
Completion.   


 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly 
and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater Springs 
Water District, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on November 5, 2009, by the 
following vote. 







Resolution No. 09-25        2 
November 5, 2009 


 
  
 Wanda Smith:   
 Victoria Wikle:   
 Jim Quigley:    
 Sukey Robb-Wilder:   
 Gaylord Schaap:   
 
 
 
           
     Victoria Wikle 
     President of the Board 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk of the Board 





		Item V-A - Staff report - CIP IV-A, Project 2 NOC

		Item V-A.1 Res 09-25 CIP IV-A, Proj 2 Notice of Completion






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: November 5, 2009 
  
SUBJECT: UPDATE ON REQUEST FOR GRANT FUNDING FROM THE 
RUSSIAN RIVER REDEVELOPMENT OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE/SONOMA 
COUNTY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY FOR CIP IV-B  
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive an update on this funding request.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Approval by the County of this grant request of $1,994,250 will fund 
approximately 75% of CIP IV-B, the Fiscal Year 2010 and 2011 capital projects of the 
District’s 2010-2015 Capital Improvement Program (CIP).  This will allow the District to 
maintain reserves above District policy at a level sufficient to continue infrastructure 
improvements beyond the six-year CIP, and allows the District to delay increasing the 
Capital Debt Reduction Charge (CDRC) for at least two years. 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Board of Supervisors, acting as the Community Development Commission 
(CDC), consideration of this item has been postponed from the date we reported last 
month, November 3, to December 8, 2009.  It may be on the consent calendar or 
the CDC administrative agenda. 
 








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: November 5, 2009 
  
SUBJECT: ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 41 ESTABLISHING A DISTRICT RESERVE 
POLICY  
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Introduce, by reading of title only, Ordinance No. 41, An 
Ordinance of Sweetwater Springs Water District Adding Policy Number 3510, District 
Reserve Policy, to the District’s Policy and Procedures.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Adoption of Ordinance No. 41 would have the financial impact of 
designating a certain amount of funds as reserves that will be used only in certain, 
defined situations.  The Board will be able to direct use of the funds as long as a plan is 
established to return the reserves to the designated level. 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
Reserve policies are common and recommended for public agencies.   They provide 
a “rainy day” fund for unanticipated events, establish a measure of financial health, 
and they are part of the process for determining how much capital spending an 
agency can afford.  
 
Over the past 10 years the District has worked hard to improve its financial 
condition.  Today, that condition is good.  We are audited each year and recent 
audits have given the District good marks for financial accountability and openness.   
Operational, economic, and other possible uncertainties suggest some level of 
reserves is needed.    
 
At the same time the District needs substantial infrastructure improvements, has an 
aggressive capital improvement program (CIP) and is asking for funding assistance 
to construct the projects in the CIP.  The annual revenues of the District are not 
sufficient to fund the needed CIP and funds for these projects will come in part from 
District reserves, loans, or grants.   Some measure of the District’s reserves is 
needed to determine how much of the District’s money is available to construct the 
CIP and still stay in good financial condition and how loans and grants can fit into the 
District’s long term financial picture.  A formal reserve policy which sets out the 
appropriate amount of District funds needed for unanticipated events, will help 
identify reserves available for the CIP while ensuring the District stays in good 
financial condition.     







Ordinance 41, District Reserve Policy  2  
November 5, 2009 


Ordinance 41 establishes that reserve policy and places it in the District’s Policies 
and Procedures in Section 3510.  The reserve policy is based on setting aside 25% of 
Operating Budget Expenses, 25% of annual debt principal and interest payments, 
25% of a nominal $1 million capital improvement program, and $200,000 cash for 
ongoing operations.  A draft reserve policy based on revenues, but not including a 
debt payment reserve, was used for the Fiscal Year 2009-2010 (FY10) Budget.   
 
The Board discussed the reserve policy at its September and October meetings.  It 
agreed with the concept of a reserve at the 25% level, directed staff to include debt 
repayments in the reserve, and directed that the operating reserve be based on 
expenses rather than revenues.  Table 1 shows the amounts that would be in the 
policy reserves for the FY10 Budget if the Ordinance 41 policy were used, and 
compares those amounts to those in the adopted FY10 Budget.   To summarize 
Table 1, the Policy Reserve amount in the adopted FY10 Budget is $995,830; using 
the approach in Ordinance 41 it would be $1,119,754.  After Ordinance 41 becomes 
effective, staff intends to come back to the Board to revise the FY10 Budget to 
reflect the appropriate Policy Reserve amounts.   
 
Some observations on the recommended District Reserve Policy:  
 


• Use of a nominal $1 million for the Capital Reserve balances out swings in 
planned capital projects – some years there may be no construction planned; 
other years (like FY 2009) there may be a doubling up on the projects.  


 
• The switch to expense-based policy does not include direct transfers from the 


Operating Budget to the Capital Budget, but those are covered by the 
reserves required for the CIP and debt repayment.     


 
• The reserve policy amount sets a target which the annual budget should not 


go below.  Ordinance 41 provides flexibility by allowing going below the target 
if there is a plan to get above the target within a reasonable time.  The plan 
could involve raising rates over time, reducing CIP spending in a future year 
or some other cost reducing or revenue increasing approach. 


 
• Ordinance 41 in Section 3510.3 defines District funds in excess of the Reserve 


Policy as Reserves above District Policy.  That identifies the amount of funding 
available for the District’s Capital Improvement Program 


 
Comparing the District’s fund balance with the Ordinance 41 Policy Reserve amount 
shows that the District currently has funds well in excess of the Policy Reserve – 
almost $2 million.   Table 2 shows how the Reserve Policy, using the amounts in 
Ordinance 41, can be used to identify available funds for multi-year financial 
planning.  In this particular instance, Table 2 shows that currently the District does 
not have enough Reserves above District Policy to complete the approved CIP.   
 
Staff recommends introduction and subsequent adoption of Ordinance 41 which 
formally establishes a reserve policy that provides reserves for unanticipated events, 
establishes a measure of financial health, provides for flexibility in using the District’s 







Ordinance 41, District Reserve Policy  3  
November 5, 2009 


reserves, and is an important element in determining how much funding is available 
for the District CIP.   
 


Table 1.  Ordinance 41 Policy Reserves 


  
2010 Budget, 


operating revenues 
Ordinance 41, 


operating expenses 
2010 Operating Revenues/Expenses $2,183,318 $1,587,703 
Debt P&I Payments $1,091,314   


10% $218,332 $158,770 
15% $327,498 $238,155 


Operating Reserve (10%+15%=25%) $545,830 $396,926 
Capital Reserve $250,000 $250,000 
Cash on Hand (Operations Fund) $200,000 $200,000 
Debt Payments Reserve    $272,829 
      
Total Policy Reserves $995,830 $1,119,754 
      
FY 2010 EOY Reserves $3,069,581   
Funds above Reserve Policy $2,073,751 $1,949,827 


 


FY 08-09 
Projected


FY 09-10
BUDGET FY 11 FY 12 FY 13 FY 14 FY 15


REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS
Net Operating Revenues* 374,350 300,000 304,500 309,068 313,704 318,409 323,185
Total Assessments 782,000 782,000 782,000 782,000 782,000 782,000 782,000
Capital Debt Reduction Charge** 170,000 252,426         327,100        404,300         404,300          404,300        404,300        
Capital Interest 110,000 95,000           52,668          23,167           98                   10,000          10,000          
CDC Grants 983,500
Private Placement Funding (Loan proceeds) 983,500 1,328,000         664,399           
Transfers From CIRF/Reserves 600,000           970,000            900,000             400,000           


TOTAL REVENUE 3,403,350 2,757,426 2,730,667 2,488,535 2,400,101 1,914,709 1,519,485


Total Dept Payments 974,307 1,091,314         1,091,314        1,091,314         1,091,314          1,091,314        1,091,314        
CIP III 35,000 50,000 80,000
CIP IV-A (Obligated) 1,967,000


CIP IV-B, Proj 1 CIPIV-B, Proj 2 FY 12 CIP FY 13 CIP FY 14 CIP FY 15 CIP
Annual CIP $1,328,000 1,515,000 1,355,000 1,265,000 974,000 807,000
In-House Construction Projects 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000


TOTAL EXPENSES 3,016,307 2,509,314 2,726,314 2,486,314 2,396,314 2,105,314 1,938,314


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 387,043 248,112 4,353 2,221 3,787 -190,605 -418,829


FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)
Reserves above District Policy 1,820,291     1,949,827      1,354,180     386,401         (509,812)         (1,100,417)    (1,519,246)    
Begining PP Loan 2,975,899
EOY PP LOAN 1,992,399 664,399 -                
Total Funding Available for CIP 3,812,691     2,614,226      1,354,180     386,401         (509,812)         (1,100,417)    (1,519,246)    
* Projection includes effect of annual 3.5% COLA rate increase for Base Charge and Water Use Charge
** Projection includes CDRC rate increases in FY11 and FY12 to pay principal and interest on Private Placement Loan


Table 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Capital Planning Budget, Base Situation, Ordinance 41


EXPENSES


 







ORDINANCE NO. 41 
 


AN ORDINANCE OF SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT ADDING  
POLICY NUMBER 3510 TO THE DISTRICT’S POLICY AND PROCEDURES, 


RESERVE POLICY  
  
  


WHEREAS, the District wishes to establish a formal policy regarding financial 
reserves for District funds for the purposes of providing information to District elected 
officials and staff, District customers, and other observers of the District that 
demonstrate the financial health of the District, provide consistent designations for 
different categories for the reserves, define standards for the minimum amounts to 
be maintained in the designated reserves, and provide flexibility in using District 
funds; and  


 
WHEREAS, reserve policies are common and recommended for public 


agencies because they provide a “rainy day” fund for unanticipated events and 
establish a measure of financial health; and  


 
WHEREAS, adequate levels of reserves, or funds designated for various 


important purposes, are critical to the successful and stable operation of the 
Sweetwater Springs Water District; and 


 
WHEREAS, maintaining adequate reserves can translate into rate 


stabilization from year to year for customers and provides assurance that the District 
can respond to short-term emergencies, including water quality issues and natural 
disaster recovery, and economic uncertainties; and 


 
WHEREAS, the Board has determined that the levels of reserves enumerated 


below are the appropriate levels for the purposes of the reserve policy; and  
 
WHEREAS, determining the level of reserves for the purposes designated in 


the reserve policy is an essential part of the process for determining how much 
capital spending the District can afford; and 


 
WHEREAS, the District’s reserve policy will be most readily understood and 


accepted if it is formally adopted; and 
 
WHEREAS, staff presented and the Board considered and discussed the 


reserve policy at the September 3 and October 1, 2009 meetings. 
 


 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater 
Springs Water District, County of Sonoma, as follows: 
  







Ordinance No. 41. Reserve Policy  2 
November 5, 2009 


 Section 1. Policy Number 3510 of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District Policy & Procedures is hereby added as follows.  
 


3510.  District Reserves.   
 
3510.1.  Purposes of District Reserve Policy.  The purposes of the District 
Reserve Policy are to provide information to District elected officials and staff, 
District customers and other observers of the District that demonstrate the 
financial health of the District, provide consistent designations for different 
categories for the reserves, define standards for the minimum amounts to be 
maintained in the designated reserves, identify funding available for future capital 
improvement projects, and provide flexibility in using District reserves. 
 
3510.2.    Components of Designated District Reserves.  
 


3510.21.  Operating Budget Cash Reserve.  The District will have a cash 
reserve of $200,000 at the start of each fiscal year to provide for prompt 
payment of operating expenses for the coming fiscal year. 
 
3510.22.    Operating Reserve.  The District will establish and maintain a 
reserve equal to 10% of its annual operating budget expenses for the 
purposes of providing for one-time costs, dealing with economic uncertainty,   
The District will establish and maintain a reserve equal to 15% of its annual 
operating budget expenses for the purposes of dealing with emergencies and 
disaster-related expenses.  In combination, the Operating Reserve will have a 
target of 25% of the Operating Budget expenses. 
 
3510.23.    Capital Reserve.  The District will establish a Capital Reserve of 
$250,000, which is equal to 25% of a nominal $1,000,000 Capital Program.  
The Board may increase the Capital Reserve by resolution when adopting the 
annual budget.    
 
3510.24.    Debt Repayment Reserve.  The District will establish a debt 
payment reserve which is equal to 25% of all payments for principal and 
interest on all District loans in the annual operating and capital budgets. 
 
3510.25.  District Policy Reserves.  The combined amount of reserves 
designated by Sections 3050.21-24 are known as District Policy Reserves. 
 


3510.3.  Undesignated Reserves.  Reserves in District funds in excess of the 
amounts designated in sections 3050.21-24 above are undesignated, are known 
as Reserves above District Policy, and are available for use for District purposes, 
such as funding the Capital Improvement Program.   
 
3510.4.  Annual Review of District Funds and Reserve Levels.  The District 
Policy Reserves levels will be reviewed as part of the annual District Budget 
approval process.  The District may drop below the District Policy Reserve levels 
only if a plan is developed as part of the budget approval process that shows 







Ordinance No. 41. Reserve Policy  3 
November 5, 2009 


how the District will reestablish reserves that meet the District Policy Reserve 
amount.   


   
  Section 2. Effective Date. 
This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after the date of its adoption 
by the Board of Directors.  
 
This Ordinance was introduced this 5th day of November, 2009, on roll call by the 
following vote: 
  
 Jim Quigley    
 Gaylord Schaap:   
 Victoria Wikle:   
 Wanda Smith:   
 Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______ 
     
           
      Victoria Wikle 
      President of the Board 
ATTEST: 
  
  
    
Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk of the Board 





		Item V-C - Starr Report - District Reserve Policy Ordinance

		Item V-C.1 ORD 41 - District Reserve Policy






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D 
 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: November 5, 2009 
  
SUBJECT: DISCUSSION/ACTION RE ADOPTION OF RESOLUTIONS 09-26, ADOPTION OF 
THE STATE EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (SEMS) AND 09-27 ADOPTION OF THE 
NATIONAL INCIDENT MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (NIMS) 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolutions 09-26 and 09-27 which formally establish 
the State Emergency Management System (SEMS) and the National Incident 
Management System as the approach with which the District participates in local and 
regional emergencies.    


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none, as the District is currently participating in SEMS and NIMS. 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
Upon updating the District’s Emergency Preparedness Response and Recovery Plan (Plan), staff 
noticed that the Plan contains a draft of a resolution adopting the State Emergency Management 
System (SEMS), but not an approved version.  Upon investigation it was discovered that the 
District had never formally approved SEMS, as required by State law, and it was further 
discovered that the District has not approved the National Incident Management System (NIMS), 
which is required by Federal law.   The recommended action formally establishes SEMS and 
NIMS as the approach through which the District participates in local and regional emergencies.   
 
SEMS is an outgrowth of the experiences of the Oakland fire in 1999 where after action studies 
demonstrated that better coordination between agencies would have significantly reduced the 
damages and costs associated with that fire.  Prior to SEMS there had been efforts to coordinate 
emergency response activities, but the results had been spotty.  SEMS requires that all public 
agencies in California train in a consistent response approach to emergencies and use that 
approach when emergencies happen.     
 
NIMS is an outgrowth of 9/11 and was modeled on SEMS which has demonstrated its 
effectiveness in emergencies.  For California agencies there is nothing really new in NIMS when 
compared to SEMS; it just raises the organizational approach up to the Federal level and bring 
Federal agencies into the regional approach to emergency management.  
 
Exhibit 1 contains some brief introductory information SEMS and NIMS which have been 
extracted from their respective websites which both have very complete information.   
 







SEMS and NIMS Approval  2  
November 5, 2009 


The District has been following the SEMS and NIMS approach since their inception, but 
apparently has not formally approved the programs.   Important concepts include: 


• Incident Command System (ICS) – ICS establishes a structure whereby all responding 
units fit into the response hierarchy without regard to the individual agency hierarchy.  
This means that incident commanders can give orders to emergency responders without 
regard to normal chains of command.   


 
• Operational Area Concept – when an emergency happens, an operational area is 


determined, ICS is set up for the operational area, and agencies outside the operational 
area will be requested for assistance.  


 
•  District staff are emergency responders regardless of location.  In the event of an 


emergency, District staff first should determine their families and property are safe and 
then should attempt to help the District with the emergency.  If they are prevented from 
reaching the District, they should inquire locally if they can be of assistance.  


 
A good example for the District is Russian River flooding.  In the event of a flood Sonoma 
County Office of Emergency Services (OES) sets up the ICS structure and the District fits into 
the structure in it’s operational role as the operators of our water systems.  Since we will be 
busy with that during a flood and we know our system best, the ICS approach has our staff 
keeping our water systems operational, to the extent possible.   OES coordinates the operational 
area response, including getting information from us.  If we need additional resources, they will 
take the lead in getting those resources.  Among OES responsibilities is an annual preparation 
meeting which has been scheduled for November 5.   
 
The adoption of these resolutions and review of the information associated with SEMS and NIMS 
is a reminder that an important role of the District is response to emergencies.  District staff are 
first responders to all types of emergencies and assistance in emergencies is a role for all public 
employees; it’s an important part of our jobs.   







Exhibit 1.  SEMS Special District Involvement and 
NIMS Background Information 
 
SEMS General System Description 
 
From:  Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS) 
Guidelines,   
SEMS Guidelines URL:  
http://www.oes.ca.gov/Operational/OESHome.nsf/Content/B49435352
108954488256C2A0071E038?OpenDocument 
    


Part I. System Description, Section A  
 


1. What Is SEMS? The Standardized Emergency Management System 
(SEMS) is the system required by Government Code Section 8607(a) for 
managing emergencies involving multiple jurisdictions and agencies. 
SEMS consists of five organizational levels, which are activated as 
necessary:  
 


1. field response  
2. local government  
3. operational area  
4. regional  
5. state  


 
SEMS incorporates the functions and principles of the Incident Command 
System (ICS), the Master Mutual Aid Agreement (MMAA), existing mutual 
aid systems, the operational area concept, and multi-agency or inter-
agency coordination.  
 
Local governments must use SEMS to be eligible for funding of their 
response-related personnel costs under state disaster assistance 
programs.  
 
2. Purpose of SEMS SEMS has been established to provide effective  
management of multi-agency and multijurisdictional emergencies in 
California. By standardizing key elements of the emergency management 
system, SEMS is intended to:  
 


facilitate the flow of information within and between levels of the 
system, and  


facilitate coordination among all responding agencies.  
 







Exhibit 1.  SEMS and NIMS Background Information 2 


Use of SEMS will improve the mobilization, deployment, utilization, 
tracking, and demobilization of needed mutual aid resources. Use of 
SEMS will reduce the incidence of poor coordination and communications, 
and reduce resource ordering duplication on multi-agency and 
multijurisdictional responses. SEMS is designed to be flexible and 
adaptable to the varied disasters that occur in California and to the needs 
of all emergency responders. 
 
Part I System Description, C. Local Government Level.   
 
10. Special District Involvement:   Special districts are local 
governments in SEMS. The emergency response role of special districts is 
generally focused on their normal services. During disasters, some types 
of special districts will be more extensively involved in the emergency 
response by assisting other local governments.  
 
Coordination and communications should be established among special 
districts that are involved in the emergency response, other local 
governments, and the operational area. This may be accomplished in 
various ways depending on the local situation. Relationships among 
special districts, cities, county government, and the operational area are 
complicated by overlapping boundaries and by the multiplicity of special 
districts. Special districts need to work with the local governments in their 
service areas to determine how best to establish coordination and 
communications in emergencies. The following discusses some situations 
and possible ways to establish coordination.  
 
The simplest situation is when a special district is wholly contained within 
a single city or within a county unincorporated area. Usually in this case, 
the special district should have a representative at the EOC of the city or 
county in which it is located and direct communications should be 
established between the special district EOC and the city or county EOC. 
An exception may occur when there are many special districts within a 
large city or county.  
 
Typically, special district boundaries cross municipal boundary lines 
similar to state emergency response agencies. A special district may 
serve several cities and county unincorporated areas. Some special 
districts serve more than one county. Ideally, a special district involved in 
the emergency response will have representatives at all activated city or 
county EOCs within its services area. However, this may not be practical 
when many jurisdictions within its services area are affected. One 
alternative may be to focus coordination at the operational area level and 
designate a representative to the operational area EOC to work with other 
local government representatives at the EOC.  
 







Exhibit 1.  SEMS and NIMS Background Information 3 


When there are many special districts within one city or within the county 
unincorporated area, it may not be feasible for the city or county EOC to 
accommodate representatives from all special districts during area-wide 
disasters. In such cases, the city or county should work with the special 
districts to develop alternate ways of establishing coordination and 
communications. Some alternatives to consider:  
 


• representatives at the EOC only from designated key special 
districts ---telecommunications with other special districts.  


 
• one representative from each type of special district who would 


communicate with other special districts of the same type.  
 


• establish a special district coordination center for a particular type 
of special district, such as a water district coordination center, that 
communicates with the jurisdiction EOC. This arrangement may be 
established for the operational area.  


 
 
What is “NIMS”? 
(from NIMS website - http://www.fema.gov/emergency/nims/ 
 
The National Incident Management System (NIMS) is a comprehensive 
national approach to incident management, applicable at all jurisdictional 
levels and across functional disciplines. NIMS provides a consistent 
nationwide approach for federal, state, tribal entities, local governments, and 
private and non-governmental organizations to work effectively and 
efficiently together to prepare for, respond to, and recover from domestic 
incidents, regardless of cause, size, or complexity.  
NIMS is the outgrowth of systems developed and implemented by dedicated 
responders over many years, and its design and approach was developed by 
those who use these systems every day. 
 


Why do I need to be concerned about NIMS? 
 
● Responders from your county may be involved in providing or receiving 
mutual aid during response to large-scale emergencies. They use an Incident 
Command System (ICS) to organize response to emergencies. ICS is a part 
of NIMS. NIMS provides the method by which people, and the resources 
needed to effect a response, are coordinated. You need to learn about NIMS 
because this is the method that the responders in your county use to respond 
to emergencies and disasters. 
 
● As of October 1, 2006, all federal preparedness assistance is 
contingent on your state’s compliance with NIMS. This assistance 
includes federal funding from the DHS Emergency Management Performance 
Grants (EMPG), Homeland Security Grant Program and Urban Area Security 



http://www.fema.gov/emergency/nims/





Exhibit 1.  SEMS and NIMS Background Information 4 


Initiative (UASI). That means that if your county wants to be eligible to 
receive federal funds for preparedness activities which includes nearly 50 
different programs from more than 25 federal departments and agencies, 
your county must be able to certify that it has complied with the 
requirements of NIMS explained in this booklet. (A current list of federal 
preparedness funding from all programs and agencies can be found at 
www.fema.gov/emergency/nims/index.shtm) 
 


Adoption of NIMS 
 
One of the key requirements of NIMS compliance is for local jurisdictions 
which provide emergency management, public health, public works, 
emergency medical services, police, and/or fire response to adopt NIMS 
through executive order, proclamation, resolution or legislation as the 
county’s all-hazards, incident response system.  
 
Local adoption of NIMS was a compliance requirement for federal FY05, and 
many counties adopted NIMS formally at that time. 
 
If NIMS is adopted by local legislation, the legislation should not have 
“sunset” provisions, or if it does, the legislation must be renewed as often as 
necessary to maintain NIMS as the incident response system used locally. 
 
Training 
 
Free training about NIMS, ICS, the National Response Plan (NRP), and 
related topics is available from FEMA’s Emergency Management Institute 
Virtual Campus. A complete list of all training that is available to take on-line 
is at www.training.fema.gov/EMIWeb/IS/crslist.asp.  Training requirements 
for basic NIMS compliance is the on-line course ICS-700: NIMS, An 
Introduction. This course is accessible from the link above. 
 



http://www.training.fema.gov/EMIWeb/IS/crslist.asp





Resolution No. 09-26 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS ADOPTING THE CALIFORNIA STANDARDIZED EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 
SYSTEM, MASTER MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT, AND OPERATIONAL AREA 


CONCEPTS 


 
WHEREAS Sweetwater Springs Water District facilities, properties, and employees are 


located where numerous natural or human caused catastrophes may occur and that could affect 
local or regional areas, and 
 


WHEREAS the greater efficiency for emergency and disaster preparedness, response, 
recovery, and mitigation can be achieved by joining efforts between all political subdivisions, 
including cities, counties, special districts, other public benefit non-profit corporations, and 
utilities in the development and implementation of operational areas; and 
 


WHEREAS the Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS) regulations 
identify the need for all political subdivisions within the geographical area of a county to 
establish an operational area to act as an intermediate level of the state emergency services 
organization to support local government before and during emergencies; and 
 


WHEREAS following the 1991 East Bay Hills Firestorm, the California Emergency 
Services Act was amended, creating SEMS (Government Code §8607) to ensure all responding 
agencies would plan and coordinate emergency response together by incorporating the 
operational area concepts and master mutual aid agreements; and 
 


WHEREAS the Sweetwater Springs Water District claims for State reimbursement of 
personnel response costs are contingent upon adopting and using SEMS; and 
 


WHEREAS the Sweetwater Springs Water District wishes to coordinate emergency and 
disaster planning and response with other agencies and to maximize the ability to recover costs 
incurred during response; and 


 
WHEREAS the Sweetwater Springs Water District staff have received and continue to 


update SEMS and National Incident Management System (NIMS) training and participate in the 
SEMS emergency response approach, including operational area concepts and Incident 
Command System (ICS).  
 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board Of Directors of the Sweetwater 
Springs Water District that the District hereby adopts the State of California SEMS, Master 
Mutual Aid Agreement and operational area concepts as the means by which the Sweetwater 
Springs Water District will plan and respond jointly with other emergency response agencies; 
and 
 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all Sweetwater Springs Water District emergency 
plans and emergency response training shall reflect the use of SEMS, operational area 
concepts, and master mutual aid agreements and the compliance standards thereof; and 
 







Resolution 09-26, SEMS Adoption 
 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Sweetwater Springs Water District enter into and 
participate in assistance and operational area agreements to facilitate joint preparedness and 
response; and 
 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the General Manager take the steps necessary to 
effectuate these and future emergency-response-related agreements.  
 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly and regularly 
adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER 
DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on November 5, 2009, by the following 
vote. 
 
  
 Wanda Smith:   
 Victoria Wikle:   
 Jim Quigley:    
 Sukey Robb-Wilder:   
 Gaylord Schaap:   
 
 
 
           
     Victoria Wikle 
     President of the Board 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk of the Board 
 







Resolution No. 09-27 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS ADOPTING THE NATIONAL INCIDENT MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (NIMS) 
 
 WHEREAS, the President of the United States in Homeland Security Directive (HSPD)-
5, directed the Secretary of the Department of Homeland Security to develop and administer a 
National Incident Management System (NIMS), which would provide a consistent nationwide 
approach for Federal, State, local, and tribal governments to work together more effectively and 
efficiently to prevent, prepare for, respond to and recover from domestic incidents, regardless of 
cause, size or complexity; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the collective input and guidance from all Federal, State, local, and tribal 
homeland security partners has been, and will continue to be, vital to the development, effective 
implementation and utilization of a comprehensive NIMS; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is necessary and desirable that all Federal, State, local and tribal 
emergency agencies and personnel coordinate their efforts to effectively and efficiently provide 
the highest levels of incident management; and     
 
 WHEREAS, to facilitate the most efficient and effective incident management it is 
critical that Federal, State, local, and tribal organizations utilize standardized terminology, 
standardized organizational structures, interoperable communications, consolidated action 
plans, unified command structures, uniform personnel qualification standards, uniform standards 
for planning, training, and exercising, comprehensive resource management, and designated 
incident facilities during emergencies or disasters; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the NIMS standardized procedures for managing personnel, 
communications, facilities and resources will improve the District's ability to utilize federal 
funding to enhance local and state agency readiness, maintain first responder safety, and 
streamline incident management processes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Incident Command System components of NIMS are already an 
integral part of various incident management activities throughout the District as required by the 
Sweetwater Springs Water District Emergency Preparedness Response and Recovery Plan; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the NIMS approach to emergency management complements the 
California Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS), and operational area 
agreement concepts with Sonoma County, in which the District also participates;   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Sweetwater Springs Water District 
Board of Directors hereby establishes the National Incident Management System as the local 
standard for the management of routine and catastrophic emergencies. 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly and regularly 
adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER 
DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on November 5, 2009, by the following 
vote. 
 







Resolution 09-27, NIMS Adoption 
 
  
 Wanda Smith:   
 Victoria Wikle:   
 Jim Quigley:    
 Sukey Robb-Wilder:   
 Gaylord Schaap:   
 
 
 
           
     Victoria Wikle 
     President of the Board 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk of the Board 
 





		Item V-D - Staff Report - SEMS and NIMS Adoption

		Item V-D.1 Exhibit 1 for SEMS and NIMS

		Item V-D.2 RES 09-26 Adopting SEMS

		Item V-D.3 RES 09-27 Adopting NIMS






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: November 5, 2009 
  
Subject: ACTUAL VS. BUDGETED (OPERATIONS AND CAPITAL) REPORT THRU 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 (25%) 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


(Discussion item only.) 
 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
(None.) 


 
 
DISCUSSION: 


 
This report presents the 1st quarter actual revenues and expenses.  This comprises 25% of 
the year by time and so we compare the revenues and expenses to that standard. 
 
Operating Budget: 
 
1Q Revenue is greater than 25% of budgeted amount.   
 
Water Sales, the largest revenue line item, came in slightly ahead of the 25% schedule.  This 
is expected, as seasonal fluctuations typically render first quarter water sales higher than 
other quarters due to higher sales for outside watering and greater visitor activity during the 
warmer weather.  Construction New Services revenue for the first quarter is also higher than 
25% of budgeted.  It is likely that this line item will also “catch up” to its budgeted figure as 
winter approaches.   
 
1Q Expenditures are higher than budgeted. 
 
1Q expenditures are higher than budgeted in part due to the unanticipated expense of doing 
a rehab of MR Well 5 ($13,902).  Also driving 1Q expenditures up are the annual bills that 
are paid at the beginning of the fiscal year, such as insurance, LAFCO fees, water system 
fees, and bills/envelopes.  Finally, two “big-ticket” budgeted items – well repairs/videos 
($16,741), and new computer and phone servers ($5,630) happened in the first quarter and 
are not expected to be repeated. 
 
For more detail, please refer to the attached Actual vs. Budgeted breakdown provided with 
your packet. 







Actual vs, Budgeted Thru September 30, 2009 2 


 
Capital Budget: 
 
The 1Q Capital Budget is not in balance because revenues won’t come in until later in the 
year and because of carryover revenue and expenses from the prior year and loan 
repayment expenses occurred in the quarter.   
 
Revenue from the annual assessment, Capital Debt Reduction Charge (CDRC) and 
transters to in-house construction won’t be happening until later in the fiscal year.  We 
have major revenues and expenses related to CIP IV-A which were unbudgeted for FY10 
but are budgeted carryovers from FY09.  The expenses related to CIP IV-A are matched 
by revenues from the Private Placement Loan and the CDC grant.   The current 
expenses for CIP IV-B are fully funded by the District and we hope expenses for 
construction of the project will be assisted by a 75% CDC grant.   
 
The District received revenue from payment of expenses related to the 2008 County 
FEMA Viaduct Project on Monte Vista Terrace.  That revenue was budgeted in earlier 
years – we finally received it.   
 


 







FY 2009-10 
Actual


2009-10 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 
the Year


% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect changes 
since last report)


*=Ch
ged


Ordinary Income/Expense
Income


OPERATING REVENUE
4031 · Water Sales


4031.1. 2· Capital Debt Reduction Charge 57,930 252,426 -194,496 22.95%
4031.1 · Daily Water Sales Deposits 479,922 1,796,092 -1,316,170 26.72%


Total 4031 · Water Sales 537,852 2,048,518 -1,510,666 26.26% This is a cash water sales figure.   *
Total OPERATING REVENUE 537,852 2,048,518 -1,510,666 26.26%  


NON-OPERATING REVENUE
4445 · Grant Proceeds 0 0 0 0.0%  
1700 · Interest 10,416 50,000 -39,584 20.83% Reflects 1Q interest earnings *
3600 · Construction New Services 2,582 6,000 -3,418 43.04%
3601 · Construction - Service Upgrades 100 2,000 -1,900 5.0%
4032 · Rent 24,337 74,600 -50,263 32.62%  
4040 · Miscellaneous Income 1,481 2,200 -719 67.31%  


Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 38,917 134,800 -95,883 28.87%


Total Income 576,769 2,183,318 -1,606,549 26.42%


Expense
OPERATING EXPENSES


SALARY & BENEFITS
Salary


5910 · Wages 156,964 687,229 -530,265 22.84%
5912 · Overtime 6,465 33,000 -26,535 19.59%
5916 · On-Call Pay 6,155 26,436 -20,281 23.28%
5918 · Extra help - Contract 8,151 32,000 -23,849 25.47%  


Total Salary 177,735 778,665 -600,930 22.83%


Benefits
5500 · Flex Spending (Flex spending monie -1,373 0 -1,373 100.0%
5920 · Retirement 18,526 98,797 -80,271 18.75%
5922 · Payroll Taxes - Employer Paid 2,481 14,006 -11,525 17.71%
5930 · Health/Dental/Vision/AFLAC Ins. 29,226 116,715 -87,489 25.04%
5940 · Workers Comp Insurance 10,388 34,069 -23,681 30.49%


Total Benefits 59,248 263,587 -204,339 22.48%


Total SALARY & BENEFITS 236,983 1,042,252 -805,269 22.74%


SERVICES & SUPPLIES


Communications
6040-I · Internet service 383 1,800 -1,417 21.3%
6040-C · Cell Phones 515 3,100 -2,585 16.61%
6040-LD · Long Distance 130 700 -570 18.64%
6040-P · Pagers & Radios 155 900 -745 17.25%
6040-S · SCADA software maint. 499 0 499 100.0%
6040-T · Telephones 2,978 12,000 -9,022 24.82%


Total Communications 4,661 18,500 -13,839 25.19%


Insurances


6101 · Gen. Liability 41,444  50,000 -8,556 82.89% Bill paid yearly and is paid for the year *
6102 · Auto/Equipment 4,682  17,600 -12,918 26.61% Bill paid yearly and is paid for the year *


Total Insurances 46,126 67,600 -21,474 68.23%


Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2009-10 Operating Budget Variances as of September 30, 2009 (25%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


 Page 1 of 3







FY 2009-10 
Actual


2009-10 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 
the Year


% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect changes 
since last report)


*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2009-10 Operating Budget Variances as of September 30, 2009 (25%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


6140 · Vehicle Maintenance 2,332 12,000 -9,668 19.44%   
6151 · Office Maintenance 1,555 10,700 -9,145 14.54%


Total Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles 3,888 22,700 -18,812 17.13%


Maint/Repair - Facilities
6085 · Janitorial Services 1,122 6,700 -5,578 16.75%
6180 · Distribution System Repairs 8,908 70,000 -61,092 12.73%  


6235 · Treatment Sys/Well Repairs 35,073 45,000 -9,927 77.94%


In the 1Q, an unbudgeted rehab of MR Well
5 ($13,902) will leave this line item 
underbudgeted for the year.  Also this 
quarter, two large maintenance projects 
were done: (1) replace pump/motor for MR 
Well 4 ($7295) and (2) Video of El Bonita 
Well 5 ($9446)


*


6143 · Generator Maintenance 0 3,000 -3,000 0.0%  


Total Maint/Repair - Facilities 45,104 124,700 -79,596 36.17%


Miscellaneous Expenses
6280 · Memberships 504 5,100 -4,596 9.88%  
6303 · Claims 0 1,500 -1,500 0.0%  


6593 · Governmental Fees 14,178 12,000 2,178 118.15%


1Q expense includes water system fees,
paid twice yearly.  Always hard to predict, 
system fees were higher than anticipated 
this year, leaving this line item 
underbudgeted.


*
Total Miscellaneous Expenses 14,682 18,600 -3,918 78.93%


Office Expense
6410 · Postage 3,147 17,000 -13,853 18.51%


6430 · Printing Expense 4,008 5,250 -1,242 76.34%
Bills and envelopes are purchased in yearly 
quantities *


6461 · Office Supplies 2,278 7,000 -4,722 32.54%
6800 · Subscriptions/Legal Notices 684 1,000 -316 68.41%
6890 · Computers/Software 213 1,950 -1,737 10.94%
6579 · Furniture 664 1,000 -336 66.44%


Total Office Expense 10,994 33,200 -22,206 33.11%


Operating Supplies
6300 · Chemicals 4,768 14,800 -10,032 32.22%  
6880 · Tools and Equipment 1,682 5,500 -3,818 30.57%
6881 · Safety Equipment 799 2,000 -1,201 39.96%


Total Operating Supplies 7,249 22,300 -15,051 32.51%


Professional Services
6083 · Laundry Service 573 2,600 -2,027 22.03%  
6521 · County charges 325 1,500 -1,175 21.64%  
6587 · County LAFCO charges 4,761 4,700 61 101.3% Bill is pd yearly and is paid for the year *
6500 · Specialized Svces - Misc 0 0 0 0.0%
6514 · Lab/Testing Fees 1,131 8,500 -7,369 13.31%


6570 · Consultant Fees 4,928 25,000 -20,072 19.71%   
6590 · Engineering 83 2,000 -1,918 4.13%  
6591 · Engineering - re Cal Water 0 0 0 0.0%


 Page 2 of 3







FY 2009-10 
Actual


2009-10 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 
the Year


% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect changes 
since last report)


*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2009-10 Operating Budget Variances as of September 30, 2009 (25%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


6610 · Legal 6,214 20,000 -13,786 31.07%
In the 1Q, the Berry/Korbel litigation and the 
cell tower negotiations are leaving legal 
expenses slightly overbudget.


*
6630 · Audit/Accounting 2,417 18,000 -15,583 13.43%  


Total Professional Services 20,431 82,300 -61,869 24.83%


Rents & Leases
6820 · Equipment 489 2,000 -1,511 24.43%
6840 · Building & Warehouse 9,000 27,000 -18,000 33.33%   


Total Rents & Leases 9,489 29,000 -19,511 32.72%


Transportation & Travel
7120 · Seminars & related travel 248 4,500 -4,252 5.5%
7201 · Vehicle Gas 4,768 16,800 -12,032 28.38%


7300 · Travel Reimbursements 1,379 6,360 -4,981 21.68%
  


Total Transportation & Travel 6,395 27,660 -21,265 23.12%


Uniforms
6021.1 · Boots 66 1,330 -1,264 4.93%


6021.3 · T-shirts 1,215 1,200 15 101.26% T-shirts are purchased once yearly *
6021.4 · Jackets 0 360 -360 0.0%


Total Uniforms 1,281 2,890 -1,609 44.31%


Utilities
7320 · Electric and Propane 33,317 96,000 -62,683 34.71%  


Total Utilities 33,317 96,000 -62,683 34.71%


Contingencies


6000 · Contingencies (Lg, unbudgeted exp.) 0 0 0 0.0%  


Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 203,615 545,450 -341,835 37.33%


Total OPERATING EXPENSES 440,598 1,587,702 -1,147,104 27.75%


FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES
8517 · Field/office equipment 5,630 5,000 630 112.61%


8573 · Vehicles 0 0 0 0.0%  


Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 5,630 5,000 630 112.61%


Total Expense 446,228 1,592,702 -1,146,474 28.02%


Net Ordinary Income 130,541 590,616 -460,075 22.1%


Other Income/Expense
Other Expense


TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS
8620.7 · Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 0 252,426 -252,426 0.0%
8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF 0 280,000 -280,000 0.0%
8620.5 · Tfers to Building Fund 0 15,000 -15,000 0.0%
8620.2 · Tfers to In-House Constr 0 25,000 -25,000 0.0%


Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 0 572,426 -572,426 0.0%


 Page 3 of 3







 Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2009-10 Capital Program Budget Variances as of September 30, 2009 


(25%)


FY 09-10
ACTUAL


FY 09-10
BUDGET


$ Over Budget 
for Year


% of 
Budget Comments


REVENUE


-$              27,000$        (27,000)$          0.0% no new connections
Annual Assessment (County) -$              710,000$      (710,000)$        0.0% Receive first of two installments in December
Prior Year Assessment -$              40,000$        (40,000)$          0.0% Receive first of two installments in December
Capital Debt Reduction Charge -$              252,426$      (252,426)$        0.0% Transfer from Operations at end of year


Interest 10,302$        95,000$        (84,698)$          10.8% Interest on County funds is lower than expected


52,547$        -$             52,547$           DIV/0 $51,483 expected in FY09


272,977$      -$             272,977$         DIV/0
Reimbursements for CIP IV-A  carried over
from FY09


CDC Grants, CIP IV-B -$              -$             -$                 0.0%
Reimbursements for CIP IV-B, may need
budget adjustment in February


340,925$      1,052,000$   (711,075)$        32.4% CIP IV-A is being funded from PPL, CDC 50% 
goes to CIRF


Transfers to CIRF from Operations -$              280,000$      (280,000)$        0.0% End of year transfer, CDRC subtracted 


-$              25,000$        (25,000)$          0.0% End of year transfer


TOTAL REVENUE 676,750$      2,481,426$   (1,804,676)$     27.3%


EXPENSES   


  
Gen. Obligation Bonds Payments 448,688$      687,000$      (238,312)$        65.3% Full year principal and half year interest


State Loan Payments 85,086$        170,300$      (85,214)$          50.0% First payment made


Private Placement Loan 117,007$      234,014$      (117,007)$        50.0% First payment made


-$              -$             -$                 100.0%
This is a holdover from earlier budgets, don’t' 
expect any activity.


CIP III 50,000$        50,000$        -$                 100.0% Settlement payment


CIP IV-A, Carryover from FY09 319,871$      -$             319,871$         #DIV/0!
CIP IV-A, Project 1 completed; Project 2 started
in May and was largely completed by end of 
quarter


CIP IV-B 21,054$        1,052,000$   (1,030,946)$     2.0%
Design costs, expect construction to start in
Spring 2010


In-House Construction Projects 2,644$          40,000$        (37,356)$          6.6%


TOTAL EXPENSES 1,044,349$   2,233,314$   (1,188,965)$     46.8%


SURPLUS/DEFICIT (367,599)$     248,112$      (615,711)$        -148.2%


Annual Assessment - New Services 
(Capacity Charge)


Hwy. 116 ("S"Curves" Main Repl. And 
MRTP Bottleneck Pipe Replacement)


County Reimb. for FEMA Viaduct Project


Private Placement Funding (Loan 
proceeds)


Transfers to In-House Constr. from 
Operations


CDC Grants, CIP IV-A, Carryover from FY09





		Item V-E Staff report - Actual v Budgeted - 1Q 2009-10

		Item V-E.1 - Operating Budget variances as of 09-30-2009 (25%)

		Sheet1 (2)



		Item V-E.2 - Cap Imp Variances  - FY 09-10 1Q

		Revised








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-F 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: November 5, 2009 
  
SUBJECT: DISCUSSION/ACTION RE RECOMMENDATIONS REGARDING DISTRICT 
POLICIES 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Discuss additional policies to be updated or added to the 
District’s Policies and Procedures   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
This agenda item is an opportunity to discuss and provide direction on future review of 
District policies. At today’s meeting we have introduced the Reserve Policy Ordinance 
and have recently adopted the Capacity Charge Ordinance, both of which were priority 
policies.   The ad hoc Policies and Procedures Committee also recommended review of 
the paralegal review of the Policies and Procedures Manual, which is appropriate at this 
time.  The Committee also recommended that the following items may be appropriate 
for formal policies: 
 


o Executive Term 
o Investment Policy 


 
The Board may wish action on the above items or may have other policies into which it 
wishes investigation.  Staff have no current policy initiatives, other than a possible 
housekeeping policy which is adoption of water rates by resolution (currently it is done 
by ordinance which requires two readings and takes affect 30 days after adoption).   
 
 








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: November 5, 2009  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets 
all known State and Federal water quality standards.  


 
2. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in September were 32,481 


units (74.6 AF) and production was 79.0 AF.  Compared to one year ago, 
sales are lower and production is approximately the same (80.2 and 90.9, 
respectively).   The attached Figure 1 shows the 12 month moving averages 
since 2001. 


 
3. Leaks:  The District spends much staff time addressing leaks and we have 


an extensive capital program to replace water mains.  In September we had 
24 total leaks and spent 80 man-hours on them.   That’s less than August of 
this year and also September one year ago.    Figure 2 shows leak history 
and man-hours spent dealing with leaks since 2001.     


 
4. Capital Improvement Projects:  KAT Construction is essentially 


completed with CIP IV-A, Project 2, which is main replacement in the Monte 
Rio Terraces, and an Notice of Completion for the project is on this meeting’s 
agenda.  KAT did excellent work for the District and was particularly good 
with working with the residents of the project area.  KAT’s construction work 
interfered with access where they were working and the KAT staff worked 
with affected residents to keep the problems to a minimum.  We have heard 
from the residents of the area that they have noticed the improved water 
quality and pressure, and we are spending much less time in the project 
area dealing with leaks. 


 
District staff have completed the scheduled work for the in-house project on 
Duncan Trail in the Monte Rio system.  This entailed replacing approximately 
1100 feet of ¾ inch pipe with 1.5 inch pipe and appurtances (seven 
services).  Completion of this project has provided better water quality and 







General Manager’s Report  2 of 7 
November 5, 2009 


pressure to the affected customers and reduced the amount of flushing 
required to maintain a chlorine residual. 
 


5. Rainfall.  I haven’t started the rainfall chart for this rain season yet.  We did 
have a nice start for the season in early October and hope for more in the 
coming months.   


 
6. Russian River Water Shortage.    The Temporary Urgency Change (TUC) 


period ended on October 2, 2009 and the rains of early October and the 
increased releases from Lake Mendocino have raised flows in the Russian 
River to over 100 cfs by October 6, and higher for most of the month.  
Figure 3 shows the summer flows in the Russian River during the TUC period 
compared to prior years.  Also of interest is the District water production and 
sales during the TUC period compared to the State Board mandated base 
year of 2004.  Figures 4 and 5 show production and sales, respectively.  
Production in September met the 25% target.  For the TUC period (June 
through September) production was 15% below 2004 and sales were 18% 
below 2004. 


 
7. Russian River Instream Flow and Restoration, Public Policy 


Facilitation Committee (Committee) Meeting, October 29, 2009.  I 
attended the annual “check-in” meeting of the Committee.  This Committee 
is comprised of elected officials of Sonoma and Mendocino Counties and high 
level staff from State and Federal agencies associated with the Russian River 
Biological Opinion.  I came away with several impressions of the overall 
process which I’ll state briefly: 


 
• It’s amazing how the Endangered Species Act consultation process for 


two dams has such far reaching implications on activities not directly 
related to the dams’ operations. 


 
• A TUC declaration will happen on a yearly basis until D1610 is 


changed – that’s in the Biological Opinion (BO). 
 


• The BO summer flow is more related to keeping the sand barrier 
closed at the mouth of the Russian River than anything to do with flow 
requirements of the subject fish.  Yet, the sand barrier was open 
during July when flows were low, but closed during October when 
flows were much higher. 


 
  
 
    
 
   
 


 







General Manager’s Report  3 of 7 
November 5, 2009 


  


Figure 1.  Water Production and Sales 12 Month Moving Average
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


1,400


May-01 Nov-01 May-02 Nov-02 May-03 Nov-03 May-04 Nov-04 May-05 Nov-05 May-06 Nov-06 May-07 Nov-07 May-08 Nov-08 May-09


Sa
le


s 
an


d 
Pr


od
uc


tio
n 


(A
F)


5.0%


10.0%


15.0%


20.0%


25.0%


30.0%


35.0%


40.0%


D
iff


er
en


ce
 (%


)


Sales
Production
%Difference


 







General Manager’s Report  4 of 7 
November 5, 2009 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Total Pipeline Breaks 
and Hours Spent in Repair, Moving Annual Average


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


450


500


Dec
-00


Apr-
01


Aug
-01


Dec
-01


Apr-
02


Aug
-02


Dec
-02


Apr-
03


Aug
-03


Dec
-03


Apr-
04


Aug
-04


Dec
-04


Apr-
05


Aug
-05


Dec
-05


Apr-
06


Aug
-06


Dec
-06


Apr-
07


Aug
-07


Dec
-07


Apr-
08


Aug
-08


Dec
-08


Apr-
09


Aug
-09


B
re


ak
s


-


350


700


1,050


1,400


1,750


2,100


2,450


2,800


3,150


3,500


H
ou


rs


Total Breaks
Total Hours
Linear (Total Hours)
Linear (Total Breaks)


 


 







General Manager’s Report  5 of 7 
November 5, 2009 


Figure 3.  Russian River Summer Flow
Hacienda Bridge, through TUC Period, October 2, 2009


0


50


100


150


200


250


300


1-M
ay


8-M
ay


15
-M


ay


22
-M


ay


29
-M


ay
5-J


un


12
-Ju


n


19
-Ju


n


26
-Ju


n
3-J


ul


10
-Ju


l


17
-Ju


l


24
-Ju


l


31
-Ju


l


7-A
ug


14
-A


ug


21
-A


ug


28
-A


ug
4-S


ep


11
-S


ep


18
-S


ep


25
-S


ep
2-O


ct


Projected 2009 based on State Board approved TUC minimum flows and SCWA public statements


Fl
ow


 (c
fs


)


1977
2009
2007
2000-08 Avg
Proj 2009 A
Summer Crossing
WA Summer Crossing


Source: USGS 
http://waterdata.usgs.gov/nwis/uv?11467000


Figure 4.  April through September Monthly Production 
Sweetwater Springs Water District


0


20


40


60


80


100


120


2004
2008
75% of 2004
2009


April May June July August September


M
on


th
ly


 P
ro


du
ct


io
n 


(A
F)


 







General Manager’s Report  6 of 7 
November 5, 2009 


 


Figure 5.  April through September Monthly Sales 
Sweetwater Springs Water District


20


40


60


80


100


120


M
on


th
ly


 W
at


er
 U


se
 (A


F)


0
April May June July August September


2004
2008
2009
75%2004







Jun-09 Jul-09 Aug-09 Sep-09 Oct-09 Nov-09 Dec-09 Jan-10 Feb-10 Mar-10 Apr-10 May-10 Jun-10 Jul-10 Aug-10 Sep-10 Oct-10 Nov-10 Dec-10 2011 2012
Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease Completed
2009 Water Rates Revision Completed
2009 Water Rates Changes


•        Board Direction on Rate Changes
•        Prop 218 Mailing
•        Public Hearing on Proposed Rates
•        Adopt Rates with Budget


2009-10 Budget preparation Completed
2010-11 Budget preparation


•        Capital Improvement Program Board 
Discussion 


December-09


•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews Draft 
Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action April-09


•        Approve Budget May-09
Capital Projects


•        CIP IV-A, Project 1 Completion Completed, 
June 09


•        CIP IV-A, Project 2 Construction Start May-09
•        CIP IV-A, Project 2 Completion October-09
•        Phase IV-B Design January-08
•        Presentation of CIP Phase IV-B for Board 
Discussion/Action


February-08


•        RRROC for CIP IV-B July-09
•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 1 Construction 
Starts


April-10


•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 1 Construction 
Completed


October-10


Water Rights Completed, 
License June 


Contract Negotiations 
•        Start Negotiations Preparation December-08
•        Negotiations Start April-10
•        End of Contract June-10


Building Lease
•        Lease Ends July-11


Policies and Procedures
•        Capacity Charge Policy
•        Budget Reserve Policy
•        Other Policy
•        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Goals and Objectives July-09


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 





		Meeting Date: November 5, 2009 



